
 
 
 
 
 
 Date: 30 December 2005 
 
 
TO: 
 
 
 
TO: 

All Members of the South East Area 
Committee 
FOR ATTENDANCE 
 
All Other Members of the Council 
FOR INFORMATION 

  

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the SOUTH EAST 
AREA COMMITTEE to be held in the CIVIC HALL, WANTAGE on 
TUESDAY, 10TH JANUARY, 2006 at 7.00 PM. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Terry Stock 
Chief Executive  
 
 

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct, and 
Standing Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Open to the Public including the Press 
 

A large print version of this agenda is available.  Any background 
papers referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact 
Carole Nicholl, Democratic Services Officer, on telephone number 
(01235) 547631. 
  
 
Map and Vision   
 

(Page 3) 
 

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council Vision are 
attached. 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 

 
   

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 



South East Area Committee  Tuesday, 10th January, 2006 
 

2. Minutes  
 

 
   

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 6 
July 2005, (previously circulated with the Council Summons dated 19 October 2005).   
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 

 
   

 To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect of items 
on the agenda for this meeting.   
 
In accordance with Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct and the provisions of Standing Order 
34, any Member with a personal interest must disclose the existence and nature of that interest 
to the meeting prior to the matter being debated.  Where that personal interest is also a 
prejudicial interest, then the Member must withdraw from the room in which the meeting is 
being held and not seek improperly to influence any decision about the matter unless he/she 
has obtained a dispensation from the Standards Committee. 
 

4. Urgent Business and Chairman's Announcements  
 

 
   

 To receive notification of any matters, which the Chairman determines, should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances, which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the Chairman. 
 

5. Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

 
   

 Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made or 
presented at the meeting. 
 

6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

 
   

 Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the 
meeting. 
 

7. Community Grants  
 

 (Pages 4 - 13)    
 To receive and consider report 205/05 of the Strategic Director.   

 
  
 
Exempt Information Under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972   
 
 

None. 



Agenda Annex

Page 3



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\6\8\AI00002862\Grantsreport0.doc 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL   Report No 205/05 
      Wards Affected: - All 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
TO THE SOUTH EAST AREA COMMITTEE 

10 January 2006 
 

Community Grants 
 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the current budget position for this Committee in 

respect of Community Grants and to invite Members to consider and determine the grant 
applications received since the last meeting. 

 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Lorna Edwards, Community Strategy Officer, (Tel: 01235 

547626). 
 
 
2.0 Recommendations  
 

(a) Members are asked to note that the Head of Innovation & Enterprise has exercised officer 
delegation in consultation with the Chair of the Committee and awarded the following 
grants since the last meeting: 

 

Applicant Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Awarded 

Purpose 

St James (Hanney) School 
Assn  

£425.00 £425.00 Eco-Week involving community 

Mrs Martin-King, Milton £179.77 £179.77 Tree maintenance 

Mrs Sykes, Chilton £371.30 £371.30 Tree maintenance 

Mrs Luttrell-Hunt, W 
Hendred 

£211.50 £211.50 Tree maintenance 

Harwell School Summer 
Playscheme 

£200.00 £200.00 Summer playscheme 

Blewbury Village Hall £210.00 £210.00 To secure WREN funding for an 
audio loop 

Mrs Gayton, Wantage £188.00 £188.00 Tree maintenance 

Wantage Branch Royal 
Naval Assn 

£250.00 £250.00 Graphic display for Trafalgar 
Anniversary 

Total awarded  £2,035.57  

 
 
(b) Members are asked to note that the Committee’s remaining budget for 2005/06 is 

£13,439.88 
 

(c) Members are asked to clarify the principle of the decision not to award grants for re-
thatching historic buildings which was taken on 6 July, namely 
(i) whether the resolution of 6 July applies to all applications for grant aid towards re-
roofing and roofing repairs on historic buildings, regardless of material used, or only to 
applications for grant aid towards re-thatching historic buildings; and  
(ii) whether the resolution applies to roofs of houses belonging to individuals only or to 
the roofs of all historic buildings including larger buildings which are open to the 
community to use or visit. 

 
(d) In the light of the principle agreed under (c) Members are asked to confirm whether or 

not they are willing to consider an application received from the owners of the Corner 

Agenda Item 7

Page 4



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\6\8\AI00002862\Grantsreport0.doc 

House, Allin’s Lane, East Hendred for a grant towards re-roofing a barn/garage using 
tiles  

 
(e) Members are asked to consider and determine the grant applications, the agenda and 

Council priority in respect of the following: 
 

(i) Blewbury Croquet Club, £1,000, towards the cost of extending and      
enclosing the shelter at the club, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority  

 
(ii) Harwell Primary School, £10,000, towards the cost of developing the  

school swimming pool as a community amenity, Social Agenda, Town & Village 
Vitality priority  
 

(f) Members are asked to note that supplementary guidance for grants supporting the 
areas named above has been agreed and will be available to them soon  

 
 

3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 

 This report supports the Council’s Vision and Priorities.  It also supports the Vale 
Community Strategy.  It does not conflict with any Council strategy or any Council 
policy. 

 
4.0 Community Grants 
 

4.1 The current budget position for the South East Area Committee for Community Grants 
is as follows: 

 

Budget 
b/f 
2004/05 

Budget  
2005/06 

Total 
budget 
2005/06 

Environ- 
mental 
Agenda 
Proportion 

Social 
Agenda 
Proportion 

Economic 
Agenda 
Proportio
n 

Discretion- 
ary  
Proportion 

£3,473.32 £24,948.00 £28,421.32 £8,731.80 £8,731.80 
(+ £1,308.20 
from 
discretionary) 

£2,494.80 £8,462.92 
 

 Allocated £14,981.44 £ 4,941.44 £8,731.80 £0 £1,308.20 

 Remaining £13,439.88 £3,790.36 £0 £2,494.80 £7,154.72 

 
 
4.2 Clarification on principle of decision taken on 6 July 2005 

 
At the first meeting of the financial year on 6 July 2005, the South East Area 
Committee took the decision that, due to the reduced grants budget in 2005/06, it 
would not award grants for re-thatching historic buildings.  Shortly afterwards an 
application was received from the owners of the Corner House, Allin’s Lane in East 
Hendred for a grant towards the cost of re-roofing the barn/garage within the curtilage 
of their Grade II listed building; however, the roof is not thatched but tiled and the 
application is towards the cost of stripping off the tiles, replacing the battens and felt 
and then putting back the undamaged tiles as is usual practice with clay tiles.  The 
applicants indicated their intention to have the work done in September/October 2005. 
 

4.3 As this was the only application that had been received for the South East Committee 
the Chair took the decision to cancel the meeting scheduled for 13 September.  
However, in view of the intended timing of the repair work and the urgency of the work, 
he agreed that members of the Committee should be consulted by e-mail on whether 
they felt that the decision taken on 6 July included applications for roofing repairs to 
historic buildings where the roofs were made of materials other than thatching, as in 

Page 5



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\6\8\AI00002862\Grantsreport0.doc 

the case of the Corner House.  The responses to the consultation indicated that there 
was not a consensus so it was agreed with the Chair that the decision would be 
clarified at the meeting on 10 January. 
 

4.4   The applicants were advised that, in view of the circumstances and the urgency of the 
repairs, the Principal Planning Officer would have no objection to the work starting 
before the Committee met to clarify their decision and, depending on that clarification, 
to consider the application; they were also advised that the authorisation to commence 
the work was without prejudice to the Council’s subsequent decision. 
 

4.5 Members are asked to clarify whether they intended the resolution of 6 July to apply to 
all applications for grant aid towards re-roofing and roofing repairs on historic buildings, 
regardless of material used, or whether the resolution applies only to applications for 
grant aid towards re-thatching historic buildings.  Furthermore, Members are asked to 
clarify whether the resolution is intended to apply to roofs of houses belonging to 
individuals only or to the roofs of all historic buildings including larger buildings which 
are open to the community to use or visit. 
 

4.6 In clarifying their decision Members are asked to note that although the majority of 
applications received for roofing repairs concern re-thatching, some applications have 
been received in the past for repairs where the roof is made of stone or clay tiles. 
 

4.7 If Members confirm that their intention was only to decline applications for grant-aid 
towards re-thatching historic buildings, they are invited to consider the application from 
the owners of the Corner House, Allin’s Lane, East Hendred, details of which are 
attached at Appendix A. 

 
4.8 New applications for consideration 
 

Applications have been received in respect of the following organisations and there are 
narratives providing additional details at Appendix B to the report: 

   
(i) Blewbury Croquet Club, £1,000, towards the cost of extending and      

enclosing the shelter at the club, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority  
 
(ii) Harwell Primary School, £10,000, towards the cost of developing the  

school swimming pool as a community amenity, Social Agenda, Town & Village 
Vitality priority  

 
Members are invited to consider and determine the applications received and to  
determine the Council agenda and priority. 

 
 

4.9 Changes in criteria to grants supporting historic buildings, work on trees, countryside 
conservation and parish cleansing 

 
4.10 During the current financial year the Council has undertaken a review of the 

Community Grants criteria and adopted revised criteria at the Council meeting on 20 
July 2005.  Since then the portfolio-holder for Community Grants has been in 
discussion with officers regarding the provision of supplementary guidance for 
applicants wishing to apply for a grant to support historic buildings, work on trees, 
countryside conservation and parish cleansing, all of which had been the subject of 
individual grant schemes in the past prior to the merging of grant monies into one 
scheme, the Community Grants Scheme.               

 
4.11 At a meeting on 20 December 2005 the portfolio-holder for Community Grants 

reviewed and agreed changes to the criteria for grants that support historic buildings, 
work on trees or countryside conservation and parish cleansing work. The changed 

Page 6



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\6\8\AI00002862\Grantsreport0.doc 

criteria emphasise that the grants are discretionary and any amount awarded will 
depend on the available budget and the priorities of the respective committee. 
However it is hoped that all area committees will be consistent in the use of the revised 
criteria. 

  
4.12 Some aspects of the revised criteria will require legal clearance but it is hoped that this 

can be achieved by March in time for the last cycle of Committee meetings in this 
financial year.  It is also hoped that a revised supplementary guidance leaflet for 
historic buildings will be available on Valeweb and in hard copy format for use by 
councillors and residents alike by the end of March.  

 
Members are asked to note that supplementary guidance for grants supporting the 
areas named above has been agreed and will be available to them soon.  

 
 
5.0 Details of grants awarded by this Committee during the year 2004/05 and this year to date are 

listed at Appendix C to provide an overview of the range of projects, services or events 
supported in the community. 

 
 
 

TOBY WARREN 
HEAD OF INNOVATION & ENTERPRISE 

 
 

TIM SADLER 
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

 
 Background Papers:  Applications  
 

Page 7



         APPENDIX A 

 

APPLICATION: MR & MRS LAMBIE, CORNER HOUSE, EAST HENDRED 

 

Details of former Historic Building Grant Scheme 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 enables local 
authorities to grant aid the restoration of the historic fabric of listed buildings. The 
District Council had for a number of years operated a Historic Building Grant Scheme 
to assist owners in carrying out work that helped to maintain the historic features of 
their properties. The reasons for the support were: the properties are on public 
display at all times, many occupying prominent locations at the heart of their village 
or Conservation Area; these historic buildings contribute to the local distinct character 
of many of the Vales villages, and are one of the reasons why people visit the District 
each year; when compared to modern buildings and techniques, works appropriate 
for historic buildings are often more expensive due to the specialisation involved.  
 
The District Council has a statutory obligation to ensure that historic buildings are 
maintained in good condition and this grant scheme was one way in which the 
Council could encourage owners to maintain their properties. Works eligible for grant 
aid included major structural repairs, major re-pointing, restoration of windows and 
re-roofing/re-thatching. 
 
Outline of project 
The owners of Corner House, Mr and Mrs Lambie are seeking a grant towards re-
roofing the barn within the curtilage of their Grade II listed building. The barn/garage 
is separate from the house but abuts it; it is adjacent to Allin’s Lane.  They plan to 
strip off the tiles, replace the battens and felt and then replace the existing tiles. As 
can be seen in the photographs that will be shown at the meeting, the roof is in a 
very poor condition, and there is a danger of tiles falling off into one of the main roads 
into the village. The work is required to maintain the roof in a watertight condition for 
the considerable future. The work will also enhance the setting of Corner House, built 
in the early 17th Century, which is in close proximity to the barn. 
 
Financial Information 
The total cost of the work has been estimated at £4,500 excluding VAT. 
 
Under the Historic Building Grant Scheme grants were awarded on the basis of  25% 
of the cost of eligible works up to a maximum of £1,250.   
 
Officer comment (Alison Blyth, Principal Planning Officer, Environmental 
Policy): 
The application fulfils the criteria adopted by the District Council for the operation of 
its former Historic Building Grant Scheme: The building is within the curtilage of a 
listed building, within the village Conservation Area, readily visible from the street, 
and the owner has lived there for 12 years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



       Appendix B 
 
(i) Applicant:   Blewbury Croquet Club 
 
The Club is seeking financial assistance to extend the shelter at the club.  The existing 
shelter is inadequate; it is too small and inclement weather and prevailing winds mean that 
members often get wet.  The plan is to treble the area of the shelter and make it fully 
enclosed. 
 
The Croquet Club attracts members from Blewbury to Wantage and Chilton to Steventon 
and has a membership roll of 57 people, of which forty-four live in the Vale; in addition ten 
members come from different parishes in South Oxfordshire and a further three from 
elsewhere.  Membership costs £55 per annum for adults, £25 for children and a maximum 
of £100 for families.  Members range in age from 5 to 80 years. 
 
The Club provides a comparatively cheap form of recreation and exercise and caters for all 
abilities, offering training classes for beginners and improvers.  Several of the older 
members suffer from disabilities such as defective hips and knees and it is unlikely that 
they would take much exercise if it were not for the club.  Quite a few members live on their 
own so the club provides a means of avoiding social isolation. 
 
There is a croquet club at AWRE, Harwell and in Abingdon but the Blewbury Club serves 
people living in the village and surrounding area.  The Club shares lawns with the Harwell 
Club when a major competition takes place. 
 
The Club has applied to South Oxfordshire District Council but the application was rejected 
on the basis that the club is based in the Vale and the majority of the members live in the 
Vale.  
 
This application supports the following strands of the Vale Community Strategy:  
Recreation, Health and Wellbeing, Town and Village Vitality. 
 
Financial Information: 
 
Total project cost £13,608 including VAT; £11,582 excluding VAT 
 
Balances £6,127.37 at 31.3.05 (including £4,076.83 in Development 

Fund)  
  
Own contribution £5,500 (the club has recently used its funds to meet the full 

cost of an irrigation system - £7,000)  
 
Grant sought £ 1,000  
 
Previous awards (Vale) 2001/02 £11,500 towards the installation of croquet lawns  
 
Parish Council support Applied but application unsuccessful due to lack of funds. 

(Parish Council had put resources into the legal campaign 
for the mobile home site earlier this year) 

 
Other support £2,000 promised by the national body, The Croquet 

Association 

Page 9



  Applied to the Oxfordshire Community Foundation but 
application unsuccessful as they would only provide a grant 
for a sports club for disabled people 

  About to apply to Awards for All for £5,000 
 
Parish precept      £25,000;  Band D £36.71 
 
Officer comment (Helen Wynn, Sports Development Officer): 
 
Blewbury Croquet Club has been involved in the Council’s Sports Development Holiday 
Programme. They were particularly supportive and provided both the facility and expertise 
free of charge. The children and young people who attended the course enjoyed the 
activities provided and the club were very accommodating. They also proved their 
commitment to encourage new members of all ages to participate with the club on a regular 
basis. 
 
  
 
(ii) Applicant:  Harwell Primary School 
 
The School is seeking a grant towards the cost of enclosing its swimming pool so that the 
pool can be used throughout the year.  This will be achieved by building a telescopic 
building around the pool. 
 
The facility would then be available for use by the community in the evenings and at 
weekends as well as during the school day.  The likely users are children at the local pre-
school playgroup, children and families in the school community and the elderly through 
contacts made as a result of the intergenerational project currently running with the charity 
Full Circle.  It is also the school’s intention to make the pool available to local swimming 
clubs.  All of this would be in addition to the curriculum use of the pool.   
Harwell School organises lifeguard cover from King Alfred’s School for its own school 
swimming lessons which in turn helps the King Alfred’s students taking the Sports 
Leadership Course.  Lifeguard provision for community users would be by arrangement. 
 
The Harwell Parish Plan identified the refurbishment of the swimming pool, including the 
provision of a means of covering it, as an opportunity to develop the school pool as a 
community resource at the same time as providing an improved facility for the 
schoolchildren.  The covered pool will be an amenity for residents of all ages from Harwell 
and surrounding villages.  It will be fully accessible to people with disabilities through the 
provision of a ramp. 
 
This application supports the following strands of the Vale Community Strategy:  
Recreation, Culture & Leisure, Town & Village Vitality, Education & Lifelong Learning and 
Health & Wellbeing. 
 
Financial information 
 
Total project cost £72,726 including VAT; £63,085 excluding   VAT 
 
Balances £25,045 estimated for 31.03.06 of which £20,000 is for the 

project (see Other support) and £4,000 - £5,000 is required to 
be set aside as contingency and carry forward for future 
years, leaving balances of virtually zero. 

Page 10



  
Own contribution £6,800 from fundraising by Harwell School Association 
 
Grant sought £10,000  
 
Previous awards (Vale) None 
 
Parish Council support Applied to Harwell Parish Council for £500, outcome awaited. 
 
Other support Received £1,000 from Harwell Feast and £41,000 from 

Oxfordshire County Council from the school’s reserves 
(£21,000 in 04/05 and £20,000 this year); Commitment of 
£6,800 from School Association who will raise an additional 
£5,000 if Awards for All application is unsuccessful. 

 
   Applied to: Awards for All for £5,000 (outcome   awaited) 
 
  Oxfordshire County Council has also committed £9,711 for the 

demolition of the old changing rooms and levelling of the 
ground.  

  
Parish precept          £30,280; Band D £29.75 
 
 
Officer comment (Toby Warren, Head of Innovation & Enterprise): 
 
This project supports several strands of the Vale Community Strategy and helps to 
progress Harwell’s parish plan.  This project will also contribute to the new Oxfordshire 
Local Area Agreement as it should help to increase the uptake of sporting activities by 5-16 
year olds. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 G
ra
n
ts
 2
0
0
4
/2
0
0
5

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

P
ro
je
c
t,
 E
v
e
n
t,
 S
e
rv
ic
e

G
ra
n
t 

G
ra
n
t 

D
a
te

A
m
o
u
n
t 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d

a
w
a
rd
e
d

g
ra
n
te
d

p
a
id

A
rd
in
g
to
n
 &
 L
o
c
k
in
g
e
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

8
1
.6
2

8
1
.6
2

4
.5
.0
4

8
1
.6
2

C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
6
0
.0
0

1
6
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

1
6
0
.0
0

C
h
ild
re
y
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
5
0
.0
0

1
5
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

1
5
0
.0
0

C
h
ilt
o
n
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
7
2
.9
0

1
7
2
.9
0

4
.5
.0
4

1
7
2
.0
0

H
a
rw
e
ll 
P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
,3
2
8
.6
8

1
,3
2
8
.6
8

4
.5
.0
4

1
,3
2
8
.6
8

M
ilt
o
n
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

4
5
0
.0
0

4
5
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

4
5
0
.0
0

W
e
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
8
0
.0
0

1
8
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

1
8
0
.0
0

E
a
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 T
ru
s
t

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
 t
o
 s
to
re
 h
o
rs
e
 d
ra
w
n
 f
ir
e
 p
u
m
p

3
,0
0
0
.0
0

3
,0
0
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

3
,0
0
0
.0
0

V
a
le
 &
 D
o
w
n
la
n
d
 M
u
s
e
u
m

M
o
d
e
l 
R
a
ilw

a
y
 D
is
p
la
y

6
4
.9
5

6
4
.9
5

4
.5
.0
4

6
4
.9
5

G
ro
v
e
 H
o
rt
ic
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
o
c
ie
ty

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
s
h
o
w

2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

2
0
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 M
u
s
ic
 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
2
0
0
4
 s
h
o
w

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

5
0
0
.0
0

F
it
z
w
a
rr
e
n
 S
u
m
m
e
r 
P
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e

T
o
w
a
rd
s
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
s
u
m
m
e
r 
p
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

5
0
0
.0
0

S
ta
d
d
le
s
to
n
e
s
, 
C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

7
8
0
.0
0

7
8
0
.0
0

4
.5
.0
4

7
8
0
.0
0

H
a
rw
e
ll 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e

T
o
w
a
rd
s
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
p
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e

2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
0
.0
0

1
3
.7
.0
4

2
0
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
, 
G
ro
v
e
 &
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
T
w
in
n
in
g
 A
s
s
n

T
w
in
n
in
g

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

E
x
e
c
. 
6
.8
.0
4

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

H
e
n
d
re
d
s
 T
w
in
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p

T
w
in
n
in
g

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

E
x
e
c
. 
6
.8
.0
4

5
0
0
.0
0

W
y
c
h
 E
n
d
, 
F
o
rd
 L
a
n
e
, 
E
a
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

1
8
3
.2
0

1
8
3
.2
0

1
1
.8
.0
4

1
8
3
.2
0

C
a
rt
e
rs
 C
lo
s
e
, 
W
e
s
t 
H
a
n
n
e
y

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

V
in
e
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
E
a
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

M
o
u
n
t 
P
le
a
s
a
n
t,
 C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 C
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e

S
e
rv
ic
e
 O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 c
o
s
ts
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
4
/0
5

2
,5
0
0
.0
0

2
,5
0
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

2
,5
0
0
.0
0

L
e
tc
o
m
b
e
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
C
lu
b

E
re
c
ti
n
g
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
s
ta
n
d

5
,0
0
0
.0
0

4
,0
0
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

4
,0
0
0
.0
0

M
ilt
o
n
 C
 o
f 
E
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l

T
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
o
o
m

7
,5
0
0
.0
0

5
,0
0
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

5
,0
0
0
.0
0

C
h
a
rl
to
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
(P
T
A
)

R
e
p
la
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
o
f 
a
n
d
 w
in
d
o
w
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
w
im
m
in
g
 p
o
o
l 

2
,3
8
8
.0
0

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

E
a
s
t 
H
a
n
n
e
y
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

2
2
5
.0
0

2
2
5
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

2
2
5
.0
0

P
e
lv
ic
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
H
a
rw
e
ll

In
s
ta
lli
n
g
 a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 l
in
e
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 a
s
 a
 h
e
lp
lin
e
 

1
0
0
.0
0

1
0
0
.0
0

8
.9
.0
4

1
0
0
.0
0

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 W

e
lc
o
m
e
 C
lu
b
 

S
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
D
ro
p
-i
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 i
n
 G
ro
v
e

3
8
0
.0
0

3
8
0
.0
0

O
ff
. 
8
.9
.0
4

3
8
0
.0
0

H
a
n
n
e
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
h
o
p

In
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
ir
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
in
g
 u
n
it

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

O
ff
. 
1
8
.1
0
.0
4

5
0
0
.0
0

W
e
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d
 P
C

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 P
la
y
 A
re
a

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

O
ff
. 
1
8
.1
0
.0
4

5
0
0
.0
0

C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt
 P
C

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
re
p
a
ir
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
in
g
 r
a
ili
n
g
s

4
3
8
.7
5

4
3
8
.7
5

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

4
0
5
.4
9

C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt
 P
C

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 f
o
u
r 
s
e
a
ts

5
2
8
.2
1

5
2
8
.5
1

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

5
2
8
.5
1

L
e
tc
o
m
b
e
 B
a
s
s
e
tt
 V
ill
a
g
e
 H
a
ll

T
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
re
n
o
v
a
ti
n
g
 h
a
ll

5
,0
0
0
.0
0

4
,2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

4
,2
0
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 S
u
m
m
e
r 
F
e
s
ti
v
a
l

T
o
w
a
rd
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
2
0
0
5
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

3
,5
0
0
.0
0

3
,5
0
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

3
,5
0
0
.0
0

D
o
w
n
la
n
d
s
, 
B
le
w
b
u
ry

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

1
3
7
.6
0

1
3
7
.6
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

1
3
7
.6
0

B
la
c
k
c
ro
ft
, 
W
a
n
ta
g
e

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

3
5
0
.0
0

3
5
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

3
5
0
.0
0

O
rc
h
a
rd
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
E
a
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

G
a
te
h
o
u
s
e
 S
tu
d
io
, 
B
le
w
b
u
ry

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
to
ra
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

Page 12



S
t 
M
ic
h
a
e
l's
 &
 A
ll 
A
n
g
e
ls
 C
h
u
rc
h

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
re
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

S
p
a
rk
s
 F
a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
, 
E
a
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

J
a
s
m
in
e
 C
o
tt
a
g
e
, 
E
a
s
t 
H
a
n
n
e
y

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

A
ra
b
e
lla
's
 C
o
tt
a
g
e
, 
L
e
tc
o
m
b
e
 B
.

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

2
0
.0
1
.0
5

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

B
le
w
b
u
ry
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il

P
a
ri
s
h
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g

6
7
.5
0

6
7
.5
0

O
ff
 2
9
.3
.0
5

6
7
.5
0

M
S
 T
h
e
ra
p
y
 C
e
n
tr
e

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
re
p
la
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
ro
n
t 
d
o
o
r

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

1
,0
0
0
.0
0

1
0
.0
3
.0
5

C
o
tt
a
g
e
 o
n
 G
re
e
n
 C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt

R
e
-t
h
a
tc
h
in
g
 

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
,2
5
0
.0
0

1
0
.0
3
.0
5

C
h
ilt
o
n
 V
ill
a
g
e
 H
a
ll

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
re
n
o
v
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 k
it
c
h
e
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
la
c
in
g
 o
ld
 f
u
rn
it
u
re
.

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

1
0
.0
3
.0
5

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

T
o
ta
l

4
9
,6
2
8
.7
1

S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 G
ra
n
ts
 2
0
0
5
/2
0
0
6
 t
o
 d
a
te

H
e
n
d
re
d
s
 T
w
in
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p

T
w
in
n
in
g

5
0
0
.0
0

5
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

5
0
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
, 
G
ro
v
e
 &
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
T
w
in
n
in
g
 A
s
s
n

T
w
in
n
in
g

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

A
rd
in
g
to
n
 &
 L
o
c
k
in
g
e
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

4
0
.8
0

4
0
.8
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

4
0
.8
0

B
le
w
b
u
ry
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

2
0
0
.0
0

C
h
a
rn
e
y
 B
a
s
s
e
tt
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
6
0
.0
0

1
6
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

1
6
0
.0
0

C
h
ild
re
y
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

7
7
.5
0

7
7
.5
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

7
7
.5
0

C
h
ilt
o
n
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
7
2
.5
0

1
7
2
.9
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

1
7
2
.9
0

H
a
rw
e
ll 
P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
,3
1
4
.6
7

1
,3
1
4
.6
7

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

1
,3
1
4
.6
7

M
ilt
o
n
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

4
5
0
.0
0

4
5
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

4
5
0
.0
0

W
e
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d
 P
C

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
le
a
n
s
in
g

1
5
0
.0
0

1
5
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

1
5
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 B
lin
d
 C
lu
b

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
o
 D
a
y
 C
e
n
tr
e

8
8
0
.0
0

8
8
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

8
8
0
.0
0

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 C
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

S
t 
M
a
tt
h
e
w
's
 P
a
ro
c
h
ia
l 
C
h
u
rc
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s

4
,6
2
1
.0
0

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

2
,0
0
0
.0
0

S
t 
M
a
ry
's
 C
h
u
rc
h
, 
C
h
ild
re
y

R
e
s
to
ra
ti
o
n

1
,5
0
0
.0
0

1
,0
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 S
u
m
m
e
r 
F
e
s
ti
v
a
l

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
2
0
0
5

3
,5
0
0
.0
0

2
,5
0
0
.0
0

0
6
/0
7
/0
5

2
,5
0
0
.0
0

S
t 
J
a
m
e
s
 (
H
a
n
n
e
y
) 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n

E
c
o
-W

e
e
k

4
2
5
.0
0

4
2
5
.0
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
2
4
0
6
0
5

4
2
5
.0
0

M
rs
 M
a
rt
in
-K
in
g
, 
M
ilt
o
n

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

1
7
9
.7
7

1
7
9
.7
7
O
ff
 d
e
l 
0
6
0
7
0
5

1
7
9
.7
7

M
rs
 S
y
k
e
s
, 
C
h
ilt
o
n

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

3
7
1
.3
0

3
7
1
.3
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
0
6
0
7
0
5

M
rs
 L
u
tt
re
ll-
H
u
n
t,
 W

e
s
t 
H
e
n
d
re
d

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

2
1
1
.5
0

2
1
1
.5
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
0
6
0
7
0
5

2
1
1
.5
0

H
a
rw
e
ll 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
u
m
m
e
r 
P
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e

S
u
m
m
e
r 
p
la
y
s
c
h
e
m
e

2
0
0
.0
0

2
0
0
.0
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
0
1
0
9
0
5

2
0
0
.0
0

B
le
w
b
u
ry
 V
ill
a
g
e
 H
a
ll 
M
g
m
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

A
u
d
io
 l
o
o
p

2
1
0
.0
0

2
1
0
.0
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
0
1
0
9
0
5

M
rs
 G
a
y
to
n
, 
M
ill
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 W

a
n
ta
g
e

T
re
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

1
8
8
.0
0

1
8
8
.0
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
0
1
0
9
0
5

W
a
n
ta
g
e
 B
ra
n
c
h
 R
o
y
a
l 
N
a
v
a
l 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n

G
ra
p
h
ic
 d
is
p
la
y

2
5
0
.0
0

2
5
0
.0
0
O
ff
 d
e
l 
2
0
1
0
0
5

2
5
0
.0
0

T
o
ta
l

1
4
,9
8
1
.4
4

Page 13


